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CLERK. U.S. DISTRICT COURT
_NTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
WESTERN DIVISION
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11 || FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,
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Case No

2 ) % - C L TALX
‘ )  [Propose ]o 2 9270 w o
12 plaintiff, ) TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER

)  WITH ASSET FREEZE, APPOINTMENT OF
13 v. )  TEMPORARY RECEIVER, AND OTHER

)  EQUITABLE RELIEF, AND ORDER TO

) SHOW CAUSE WHY A PRELIMINARY

)

)

)

INJUNCTION SHOULD NOT ISSUE AND A

14 | TREK ALLIANCE, INC., et al.,

15 Defendants. PERMANENT RECEIVER SHOULD NOT BE
APPOINTED

16

17

18 plaintiff Federal Trade Commission having filed its Complaint

19 || for a permanent injunction and other equitable relief in this

20 | matter pursuant to Section 13(b) of the rederal Trade Commission
21 I Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), and having applied ex parte

22 || for a Temporary Restraining Order pursuant to Rule 65 of the

23 || Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and the Court having considered
24 | the Complaint, plaintiff's application, and the memorandum of

25 | points and authorities and other materials filed in support

26 | thereof, and now being advised in the premises, finds as follows:
27 1. This Court has jurisdiction of ~he subject matter of this
28 | case and there 1is good cause toO pelieve it will have jurisdiction

of all parties hereto, and that venue in this district 1s proper.
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2. There is good cause to believe that Defendants Trek
Al liance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, VonFlagg Corporation,
Jeffrey Kale Flagg, a/k/a Kale Flagg, R chard Von Al vensl| eben,
a/k/a Rich Von, Tiffani Von Al vensl eben, a/k/a Tiffani Von, and
Harry M Flagg have engaged in and are likely to engage in acts
that violate Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 8 45(a), and
that the Comm ssion is likely to prevail on the nerits of this
action.

3. There is good cause to believe that imed ate and
irreparable harmw |l result from Defendants' ongoing violations
of the FTC Act unl ess Defendants are restrai ned and enjoi ned by
O der of this Court.

4. There is good cause to believe that inmediate and
irreparable damage to the Court's ability to grant effective final
relief for consuners in the formof nonetary restitution wll
occur fromthe sale, transfer, or other disposition or conceal nent
by defendants of assets or records unless defendants are
i mredi ately restrai ned and enjoi ned by order of this Court, and
that in accordance with Fed. R Cv. P. 65(b), the interests of
justice therefore require that this order be granted w thout prior
notice to defendants. There is thus good cause for relieving the
Comm ssion of the duty to provide defendants with prior notice of
t he Comm ssion's application.

5. (Good cause exists for the appointnent of a Tenporary
Recei ver for corporate defendants Trek Alliance, Inc., Trek
Educati on Corporation, and VonFl agg Corporati on.

6. Considering Plaintiff's likelihood of ultimte success

and weighing the equities, a Tenporary Restraining Oder ("Order")
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wi th asset freeze, appointnent of a Tenporary Receiver and ot her
equitable relief is in the public interest.

7. No security is required of any agency of the United
States for issuance of a restraining order. Fed. R Cv. P
65(c).

ORDER
DEFI NI TI ONS

For purposes of this Order, the follow ng definitions shal
appl y:

1. "Plaintiff" neans the Federal Trade Conm ssion.

2. "Defendants" nmeans Trek Alliance, Inc., Trek Education
Cor porati on, VonFlagg Corporation, Jeffrey Kale Flagg, a/k/a Kale
Fl agg, Richard Von Al vensl eben, a/k/a Rich Von, Tiffani Von
Al vensl eben, a/k/a Tiffani Von, and Harry M Flagg, and each of
t hem by what ever nanes each m ght be known by, as well as their
successors, assigns, officers, agents, directors, servants,
enpl oyees, sal espersons, independent contractors, attorneys,
corporations, subsidiaries, all other persons or entities directly
or indirectly under their control or under conmon control with any
of them and all other persons or entities in active concert or
participation with any of them who receive actual notice of this
Order by personal service or otherw se, whether acting directly or
t hrough any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device,
including, but not limted to, fictitious business nanes;

3. "Corporate Defendants" refers to Trek Alliance, Inc.,

Trek Education Corporation, and VonFl agg Cor porati on.




© 00 N o o A~ wWw N PP

N NN N N NN NN R R R B R R R R R R
o N o 01 W N RBP O © 0 N O 0 M W N B O

4. "I ndi vi dual Defendants"” refers to Richard Von
Al vensl eben, a/k/a Rich Von, Tiffani Von Al vensl eben, al/k/a
Tiffani Von, and Harry M Fl agg.

5. "Receivershi p Defendants" neans corporate defendants Trek
Al liance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, and VonFl agg
Corporation, their affiliates and subsidiaries, and any ot her
corporations or businesses under the control of any of the
cor por at e def endants.

6. “Mar keting Program includes, but is not limted to, any
mul ti-1evel marketing program business investnent opportunity,
pyram d marketing schenme, Ponzi schene, or chain nmarketing schene
that is marketed by any of the Defendants.

7. “Mar keting Program Partici pant” neans anyone who, under
a condition that he or she nake a paynent, is granted the right to
receive rewards in return for recruiting other people who are al so
granted a license or right to receive rewards in return for
recruiting others, upon condition of making a paynent, and nmay
further perpetuate the chain of person who are granted a right
upon such conditions.

8. "Material" neans likely to affect a person's choice of,
or conduct regarding, goods or services.

9. "Assets" nmeans any legal or equitable interest in, right
to, or claimto, any real or personal property, including, wthout
limtation, chattels, goods, instrunents, equipnent, fixtures,
general intangibles, |easeholds, mail or other deliveries,

i nventory, checks, notes, accounts, credits, contracts,

recei vabl es, shares of stock, and all cash, wherever | ocat ed.
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10. "Docunent"” is equal in scope and synonynobus in meani ng
to the usage of the termin Federal Rule of Cvil Procedure 34(a),
and includes witings, draw ngs, graphs, charts, photographs,
audi o and vi deo recordi ngs, conputer records, and any other data
conpi l ations fromwhich informati on can be obtained. A draft or
non-identical copy is a separate docunent within the neani ng of
the term

11. "Person" nmeans a natural person, organi zation, or other
| egal entity, including a corporation, partnership,
proprietorship, association, cooperative, government or
gover nment al subdi vi si on or agency, or any other group or
conbi nation acting as an entity.

12. The terns "and" and "or" shall be construed
conjunctively or disjunctively as necessary, and to nake the

appl i cabl e phrase or sentence inclusive rather than exclusive.

l.
PROHI Bl TED REPRESENTATI ONS

| T I S THEREFORE CRDERED t hat Defendants and their successors,
assigns, officers, agents, servants, enployees, and attorneys, and
t hose persons or entities in active concert or participation with
any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal
service or otherw se, whether acting directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection
with the offering for sale or sale of the right to participate in
any Marketing Program are hereby tenporarily restrained and

enjoined fromthe foll ow ng
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A Representing, or assisting others in representing,
expressly or by inplication, that persons who participate in such
prograns will or are likely to receive substantial income fromthe
purchase of products or services by their "downline" --i.e, the
participant's recruits and the recruit's successive generation of
recruits--or the recruitnment of additional participants;

B. Representing, or assisting others in representing,
expressly or by inplication, that persons who participate in such
a programwi |l or are likely to receive conpensation related to
recruitnment;

C. Representing, or assisting others in representing,
expressly or by inplication, that persons who participate in such
a programwi |l or are likely to receive conpensation related to
t he purchase or sale of goods or services, unless the paynent of
such conpensation is not prohibited by Section Il of this Oder;

D. Fal sely representing, or assisting others in falsely
representing, expressly or by inplication, that persons who
participate in such a programare likely to realize substanti al
fi nanci al gain;

E. Fal sely representing, or assisting others in falsely
representing, expressly or by inplication, that salaried or
per manent enpl oynent opportunities are avail able; and

F. Fal sely representing, or assisting others in falsely
representing, expressly or by inplication, any other materi al

fact.
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.
PROHI Bl TI ON AGAI NST MATERI AL OM SSI ONS

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Defendants and their successors,
assigns, officers, agents, servants, enployees, and attorneys, and
t hose persons or entities in active concert or participation with
any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal
service or otherw se, whether acting directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection
with the offering for sale or sale of the right to participate in
any Marketing Program are hereby tenporarily restrained and
enjoined fromfailing to disclose, clearly and conspi cuously,
bef ore any consuner pays to beconme a Marketing Program
Participant, all information material to a consuner's decision to
participate in the Marketing Program including but not limted to
t he foll ow ng:

A The average anmount of comm ssions, bonuses and overrides
received by all participants in the Marketing Program

B. The nunber and percentage of current Mrketing Program
Partici pants who have not received any comm ssions, bonuses or
overrides;

C. For each level or rank within the pay plan or
conpensation structure of the Marketing Program the nunber and
per centage of current Marketing Program Partici pants who have
reached that level or rank, and the average length of tinme it took
to reach that |evel; and

D. That the structure of the Marketing Program prevents the
vast majority of the Marketing Program Participants fromreceiving

substanti al incone from bonuses, conm ssions or overrides.
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(I

PROHI Bl TI ON AGAI NST MAKI NG PAYMENTS RELATED TO RECRUI TMENT

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Defendants and their successors,
assigns, officers, agents, servants, enployees, and attorneys, and
t hose persons or entities in active concert or participation with
any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal
service or otherw se, whether acting directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, are
tenporarily restrained and enjoined from operating any Marketing
Program t hat:

A Pays any conpensation related to recruitnent;

B. Pays any conpensation related to the purchase or sale of
goods or services unless the mgjority of such conpensation is
derived fromsales to persons who are not nenbers of such
Mar keti ng Program or

C. O herwi se constitutes a pyramd marketing schene, Ponzi
schenme, or chain marketing schene.

I V.
ASSET FREEZE

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Defendants are hereby tenporarily
restrai ned and enjoined, until further order of this Court, from

A Transferring, encunbering, selling, concealing,
pl edgi ng, hypot hecati ng, assigning, spending, w thdraw ng,

di sbursing, conveying, gifting, dissipating, or otherw se

di sposi ng of any funds, property, coins, lists of consunmer nanes,
shares of stock, or other assets, wherever |ocated, that are (1)
owned or controlled by any of the naned Defendants, in whole or in

part; (2) in the actual or constructive possession of any of the
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named Defendants; (3) held by an agent of any of the naned

Def endants, as a retainer for the agent's provision of services to
a nanmed Defendant; or (4) owned, controlled by, or in the actual

or constructive possession of, or otherw se held for the benefit
of , any corporation, partnership, or other entity directly or
indirectly owned or controlled by any of the nanmed Defendants.

B. Opening or causing to be opened any safe deposit boxes
titled in the name of any of the naned Defendants, or subject to
access by any of the naned Defendants;

C. | ncurring charges or cash advances on any credit or
debit card issued in the nane, singly or jointly, any of the naned
Def endants, or any corporation, partnership, or other entity
directly or indirectly owed or controlled by any of the naned
Def endants; and

D. Failing to disclose to Plaintiff, inmediately upon
service of this Order, information that fully identifies each
asset of the nanmed Defendants, and each entity hol ding such asset,
including, wthout limtation, the entity's nanme, address, and
t el ephone nunber, the nunber of the account, and the nane under
whi ch the account is held.

E. Provi ded, that the freeze inposed in this Section shal
be construed to apply to assets that the Individual Defendants
acquire follow ng service of this Oder only if such assets are
derived fromactivity prohibited by this Oder.

V.
FI NANCI AL REPORTS
| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that within forty-eight hours after

service of this Oder
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A Each of the Individual Defendants shall conplete and
deliver to plaintiffs the Financial Statenent captioned "Financi al
St at enent of |ndividual Defendant,” a copy of which is attached
hereto as Attachnment 1;

B. Def endants Jeffrey Kale Flagg, Richard Von Al vensl eben,
and Harry Flagg are jointly and severally ordered to prepare and
deliver to Plaintiff and the tenporary Receiver, for each of the
Cor por at e Defendants, the Financial Statenent captioned "Financial

St at enent of Corporate Defendant,” a copy of which is attached
hereto as Attachnent 2;

C. Each I ndivi dual Defendant shall, on behalf of each
corporation of which he or she is the magjority owner or otherw se
controls, other than the Corporate Defendants, conplete and
deliver to plaintiffs a separate copy of the "Financial Statenent
of Corporate Defendant”;

D. Named Defendants shall provide the Comm ssion access to
records and docunents pertaining to assets of any of the naned
Def endants that are held by financial institutions outside the
territory of the United States by signing a Consent to Rel ease of
Fi nanci al Records if requested by plaintiffs.

V.
PRESERVATI ON OF RECORDS

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Defendants, and their agents,
servants, enployees, and attorneys, and all persons or entities
directly or indirectly under the control of any of them and al
ot her persons or entities in active concert or participation with
any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal

service or otherw se, and each such person, are hereby tenporarily

10
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restrai ned and enjoined from destroying, erasing, mutilating,
concealing, altering, transferring or otherw se disposing of, in
any manner, directly or indirectly, any docunents that relate to
t he busi ness practices or business or personal finances of any of
t he I ndividual Defendants or the business practices or business
finances of any of the Corporate Defendants, including, but not
limted to, such docunents as any contracts, accounting data,
correspondence, advertisenents, conputer tapes, discs or other
conput eri zed records, books, witten or printed records,
handwitten notes, tel ephone |ogs, tel ephone scripts, receipt
books, | edgers, personal and busi ness cancel ed checks and check
regi sters, bank statenents, appointnent books, copies of federal,
state, or |ocal business or personal incone or property tax
returns.
VI,
RECCORD KEEPI NG

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat each of the Individual Defendants
is hereby tenporarily restrained and enjoined fromfailing to make
and keep, and to provide to Plaintiffs' counsel pronptly upon
request, an accurate accounting that, in reasonable detail,
accurately, fairly, and conpletely reflects his incones,
di sbursenents, transactions, and use of noney, begi nning
i mredi at el y upon service or actual notice of this Oder.

VI,
NOTI FI CATI ON OF BUSI NESS ACTI VI TI ES

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat each of the Individual Defendants

is hereby tenporarily restrained and enjoined fromcreating,

operating, or exercising any control over any business entity,

11
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i ncluding any partnership, limted partnership, joint venture,
sol e proprietorship or corporation, without first serving on
counsel for the Conmm ssion a witten statenment disclosing the
followng: (1) the nane of the business entity; (2) the address
and tel ephone nunber of the business entity; (3) the nanmes of the
business entity's officers, directors, principals, managers and
enpl oyees; and (4) a detailed description of the business entity's
i ntended activities.

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat each of the Individual Defendants
shall notify the Conm ssion at | east seven (7) days prior to any
affiliation with any new or previously inactive business or
enpl oynent. Each notice shall include the defendant's new
busi ness address and a statenment of the nature of the new business
or enploynent and of his or her duties and responsibilities in
connection with that business or enploynent.

I X.
FI NANCI AL | NSTI TUTI ONS

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat any financial or brokerage
institution, business entity, or person having possession,
custody, or control of any records of any of the named Defendants
or Receivership Defendants, or of any account, safe deposit box,
or other asset titled in the nanme of any of the naned Defendants,
either individually or jointly or held for the benefit of any of
t he naned Defendants, or that has maintai ned any such account,
saf e deposit box, or other asset at any time since January 1,
1999, shall:

A Hold and retain within its control and prohibit the

transfer, encunbrance, pledge, assignnent, renoval, wthdrawal,

12
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di ssi pation, sale, or other disposal of any such account or other
asset, except for transfers or withdrawals authorized in witing
by counsel for Plaintiff, by the Tenporary Receiver (with respect
to assets of any of the Receivership Defendants, or by further
order of this Court;

B. Deny access to any safe deposit box titled individually
or jointly in the name of any of the nanmed Defendants or otherw se
subj ect to access by either defendant;

C. Provide to Plaintiff and to the Tenporary Receiver,
within three (3) business days of notice of this Order, a sworn
statenent setting forth:

1. The identification of each account or asset;

2. The bal ance of each account or a description of the
nature and val ue of each asset as of the close of business on the
day notification of this Order is received, and, if the account or
asset has been closed or noved, the bal ance or val ue renoved and
the person or entity to whomit was transferred; and

3. the identification of any safe deposit box titled
in the nane of or subject to access by any of the naned
Def endant s.

D. Upon request by counsel for Plaintiff or the Tenporary
Receiver (wth respect to assets held for any of the Receivership
Def endants), pronptly provide Plaintiff or the Tenporary Receiver
with copies of all records or other docunentation pertaining to
such account or asset, including but not limted to originals or
copi es of account applications, account statenents, signhature
cards, checks, drafts, deposit tickets, transfers to and fromthe

accounts, all other debit and credit instrunents or slips,

13
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currency transaction reports, 1099 forns, and safe deposit box
| ogs; and

E. At the direction of Plaintiff or the Tenporary Receiver
appoi nted herein, and without further order of this Court, convert
any stocks, bonds, options, nmutual funds, or other securities to
their cash equival ents.

X.
REPATRI ATI ON OF ASSETS

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that within five busi ness days
follow ng service of this Order, each of the named Defendants
shal |,

A Repatriate to the United States all funds, docunents, or
assets in foreign countries held either: (1) by them (2) for
their benefit; or (3) under their direct or indirect control,
jointly or singly;

B. The sanme business day as any repatriation under
par agr aph A above,

1. notify plaintiffs and the Tenporary Receiver of the
name and | ocation of the financial institution or other entity
that is the recipient of such funds, docunents, or assets; and

2. serve this Order on any such financial institution
or other entity;

C. Provide Plaintiff and the Tenporary Receiver with a ful
accounting of all funds, docunents, and assets outside of the
territory of the United States held either: (1) by them (2) for
their benefit; or (3) under their direct or indirect control,

jointly or singly; and

14
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D. Hold and retain all repatriated funds, docunments, and
assets and prevent any transfer, disposition, or dissipation
what soever of any such assets or funds.

Xl .
| MVEDI ATE ACCESS TO DEFENDANTS' RECORDS

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Defendants and their successors,
assigns, officers, agents, servants, enployees, and attorneys, and
t hose persons in active concert or participation with any of them
who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or
ot herwi se, whether acting directly or through any corporation,
subsidiary, division, or other device, and the Tenporary Recei ver,
shall allow Plaintiff's representatives immedi ate access to the
busi ness prem ses, mail drops, storage facilities, and all other
busi ness | ocati ons owned, controlled, or used by defendants,
including, but not limted to, 917 Tahoe Blvd., Suites #103 and
#208, Incline Village, Nevada, and 875 E. Patriot Blvd., Suite
205, Reno, Nevada. The purpose of the access shall be to effect
service and to inspect and copy materials relevant to this action.
Plaintiff shall have the right to renmove docunents from
Def endants' prem ses in order that they may be inspected,
inventoried, and copied. Plaintiff shall return any such renoved
docunents within three (3) business days, or such tinme-period that
is agreed upon by Plaintiff and Defendants. Defendants, to the
extent they are in possession of docunents relevant to this
action, shall provide Plaintiff with any necessary neans of access
to these docunents, including without limtation keys and
conbi nations to | ocks, conputer access codes, and storage area

access informati on;

15
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| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat the Tenporary Receiver shal
subsequently all ow the Conm ssion's representatives, the
representatives of the naned Defendants, and the naned Defendants
t henmsel ves, reasonabl e access to the business prem ses of the
Recei vershi p Defendants. The purpose of this access shall be to
i nspect and copy any and all books, records, accounts, and other
property owned by or in the possession of the Receivership
Def endant. The Tenporary Receiver shall have the discretion to
determne the tinme and manner of this access.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that if, at the tinme of service of this
Order, any records or property relating to Defendants' business or
assets are located in the personal residence of any of the nanmed
Def endants, then such Defendant shall, within forty-eight (48)
hours of service of this Order, produce to Plaintiff, at a
| ocation designated by Plaintiff:

A Al'l contracts, accounting data, witten or electronic
correspondence, advertisenents, conputer tapes, discs, or other
conputerized or electronic records, books, witten or printed
records, handwitten notes, telephone |ogs, tel ephone scripts,

t el ephone bills, receipt books, |edgers, nenbership records and
lists, refund records, receipts, |edgers, bank records (including
personal and business nonthly statenments, cancel ed checks, records
of wire transfers, and check regi sters), appointnent books, copies
of federal, state, and | ocal business or personal incone or
property tax returns, 1099 forns, title records, and other
docunents or records of any kind that relate to defendants'

busi ness and assets; and

16
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B. All computers and data in whatever form, used by
defendants, in whole or in part, relating to defendants’ business
and assets.

XIT.
APPOINTMENT OF TEMPORARY RECEIVER
F;P ;o sC
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that diphp Tvan< is

appointed Temporary Receiver for Corporate Defendants Trek

Alliance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, and VonFlagg
Corporation, and their affiliates and subsidiaries (hereinafter
referred to as the "Receivership Defendants"), with the full power
of an equity receiver. The Temporary Receiver shall be the agent
of this Court and solely the agent of this Court in acting as
Receiver under this Order. The Temporary Receiver shall be
accountable directly to this Court. The Temporary Receiver shall
comply with all Local Rules of this Court governing receivers.
XITI.
RECEIVERSHIP DUTIES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Temporary Receiver is directed
and authorized to perform and accomplish the following:

A. Assume full control of the Receivership Defendants by
removing, as the Recelver deems necessary or advisable, any
manager, independent contractor, employee, or agent of the

Receivership Defendants, including any and all of the Individual

pDefendants, from control of, management of, or participation 1in,

the affairs of the Receivership Defendants;

B. Take exclusive custody, control and possession of all

assets and documents of, or in ~he possession, custody, or under

the control of, the Receivership Defendants, wherever situated.

f
~J
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The Tenporary Receiver shall have full power to divert mail and to
sue for, collect, receive, take in possession, hold, and manage
all assets and docunents of the Receivership Defendants and ot her
persons or entities whose interests are now held by or under the
di rection, possession, custody, or control of the Receivership
Def endants. Provided, however, the Tenporary Receiver shall not
attenpt to collect any anmount from any sal es representative of the
Recei ver shi p Def endants.

C. Take all steps necessary to secure all prem ses owned,
rented, |eased, or otherw se controlled by the Receivership
Def endants, including but not limted to all such prem ses | ocated
at 917 Tahoe Blvd., Suites #103 and #208, Incline Village, Nevada,
and 875 E. Patriot Blvd., Suite 205, Reno, Nevada. Such steps may
i nclude, but are not limted to, the following as the Tenporary
Recei ver deens necessary or advisable: (1) serving and filing this
Order; (2) conpleting a witten inventory of all receivership
assets; (3) obtaining pertinent information fromall enployees and
ot her agents of the Receivership Defendants, including, but not
limted to, the nane, home address, social security nunber, job
description, nethod of conpensation, and all accrued and unpaid
commi ssi ons and conpensation of each such enpl oyee or agent;
(4) video taping all portions of the |ocation; (5) securing the
| ocati on by changi ng the | ocks and di sconnecting any conputer
nodens or other neans of access to the conputer or other records
mai ntai ned at that |ocation; or (6) requiring any persons present
on the premses at the tine this Order is served to | eave the
prem ses, to provide the Tenporary Receiver with proof of

identification, or to denonstrate to the satisfaction of the
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Tenporary Receiver that such persons are not renoving fromthe
prem ses docunments or assets of the Receivership Defendants;

D. Conserve, hold, and nanage all receivership assets, and
performall acts necessary or advisable to preserve the val ue of
t hose assets, in order to prevent any irreparable | oss, danage, or
injury to consuners or to creditors of the Receivership
Def endants, including, but not limted to, obtaining an accounting
of the assets and preventing transfer, w thdrawal, or
m sappl i cati on of assets;

E. Enter into contracts and purchase insurance as advi sabl e
or necessary;

F. Prevent the inequitable distribution of assets and to
determ ne, adjust, and protect the interests of consuners and
creditors who have transacted business with the Receivership
Def endant s;

G Manage and adm ni ster the business of the Receivership
Def endants until further order of this Court by perform ng al
incidental acts that the Tenporary Receiver deens to be advisable
or necessary, which includes retaining, hiring, or dismssing any
enpl oyees, independent contractors, or agents;

H. Choose, engage, and enpl oy attorneys, accountants,
apprai sers, and ot her independent contractors and techni cal
specialists, as the Tenporary Receiver deens advi sable or
necessary in the performance of duties and responsibilities under
the authority granted by this O der;

| . Make paynents and di sbursenents fromthe receivership
estate that are necessary or advisable for carrying out the

directions of, or exercising the authority granted by, this O der.
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The Tenporary Receiver shall apply to the Court for prior approval
of any paynent of any debt or obligation incurred by the

Recei vershi p Defendants prior to the date of entry of this Oder,
except paynents that the Tenporary Receiver deens necessary or
advi sabl e to secure assets of the Receivership Defendants, such as
rental paynents;

J. Det erm ne and i nplenment the manner in which the
Recei vershi p Defendants will conply with, and prevent violations
of, this Order and all other applicable |aws;

K. Institute, conprom se, adjust, appear in, intervene in,
or becone party to such actions or proceedings in state, federal
or foreign courts that the Tenporary Recei ver deens necessary and
advi sabl e to preserve or recover the assets of the Receivership
Def endants or that the Tenporary Receiver deens necessary and
advi sable to carry out the Tenporary Receiver's mandate under this
O der;

L. Def end, conprom se, adjust, or otherw se di spose of any
or all actions or proceedings instituted in the past or in the
future against the Tenporary Receiver in his role as Tenporary
Recei ver, or against the Receivership Defendants that the
Tenporary Receiver deenms necessary and advi sable to preserve the
assets of the Receivership Defendants or that the Tenporary
Recei ver deens necessary and advi sable to carry out the Tenporary
Recei ver's mandate under this Order

M | ssue subpoenas to obtain docunents and records
pertaining to the receivership, and conduct discovery in this

action on behalf of the receivership estate;
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N. Open one or nore bank accounts as designated
depositories for funds of the Receivership Defendants. The
Tenporary Receiver shall deposit all funds of the Receivership
Def endants in such a designated account and shall make al
paynents and di sbursenments fromthe receivership estate from such
an account; and

O Mai ntain accurate records of all receipts and
expenditures that s/he nakes as Tenporary Receiver.

Xl V.
COOPERATI ON W TH THE TEMPORARY RECEI VER

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat Defendants, and their agents,
servants, enployees, and attorneys, and all persons or entities
directly or indirectly under the control of either of them and
all other persons or entities in active concert or participation
with either of them who receive actual notice of this Oder by
personal service or otherw se, and each such person, shall fully
cooperate with and assist the Tenporary Receiver. Such
cooperation and assi stance shall include, but not be limted to,
providing any information to the Tenporary Receiver that the
Tenporary Recei ver deens necessary to exercising the authority and
di scharging the responsibilities of the Tenporary Receiver under
this Order; providing any password required to access any conputer
or electronic files in any nedium or advising all persons who owe
nmoney to the Receivership Defendants (other than sales
representatives) that all debts should be paid directly to the
Tenporary Receiver. Defendants are hereby tenporarily restrained

and enjoined fromdirectly or indirectly:
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A Transacting any of the business of the Receivership
Def endants, or transacting busi ness under the nane Trek, Trek
Al liance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, TEC, VonFl agg
Corporation, or any substantially simlar nane;

B. Destroying, secreting, defacing, transferring, or
otherwi se altering or disposing of any docunents of the
Recei vershi p Def endants, including, but not limted to, books,
records, accounts, or any other papers of any kind or nature;

C. Transferring, receiving, altering, selling, encunbering,
pl edgi ng, assigning, liquidating, or otherw se disposing of any
assets owned, controlled, or in the possession or custody of, or
in which an interest is held or clained by, the Receivership
Def endants, or the Tenporary Receiver;

D. Excusi ng debts owed to the Receivership Defendants;

E. Failing to notify the Tenporary Receiver of any asset,

i ncl udi ng accounts, of a Receivership Defendants held in any nane
ot her than the nanme of the Receivership Defendants, or by any
person or entity other than the Receivership Defendants, or
failing to provide any assistance or information requested by the
Tenporary Receiver in connection wth obtaining possession,
custody, or control of such assets; or

F. Doi ng any act or refraining fromany act whatsoever to
interfere with the Tenporary Receiver's taking custody, control,
possessi on, or managi ng of the assets or docunents subject to this
receivership; or to harass or interfere with the Tenporary
Receiver in any way; or to interfere in any manner with the
exclusive jurisdiction of this Court over the assets or docunents

of the Receivership Defendants; or to refuse to cooperate with the
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Tenporary Receiver or the Tenporary Receiver's duly authorized
agents in the exercise of their duties or authority under any
Order of this Court.
XV.
DELI VERY OF RECEl VERSH P PROPERTY
| T I S FURTHER ORDERED t hat :
A | medi ately upon service of this Order upon them or
within a period permtted by the Tenporary Receiver, the
| ndi vi dual Defendants and all other persons in possession,
custody, and control of assets or docunents of the Receivership
Def endants shall transfer or deliver possession, custody, and
control of the followng to the Tenporary Receiver:
1. Al'l assets of the Receivership Defendants;
2. Al l docunents of the Receivership Defendants,
i ncluding, but not limted to, books and records of accounts, al
financial and accounting records, balance sheets, inconme
statenents, bank records (including nonthly statenents, cancel ed
checks, records of wire transfers, and check registers), client
lists, title docunents and ot her papers;
3. All assets belonging to nenbers of the public now
hel d by the Receivership Defendants; and
4. Al l keys and codes necessary to gain or to secure
access to any assets or docunents of the Receivership Defendants,
including, but not limted to, access to their business prem ses,
means of conmuni cation, accounts, conputer systens, or other
property.
B. In the event any person or entity fails to deliver or

transfer any asset or otherwise fails to conply with any provision
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of this Paragraph, the Tenporary Receiver may file, on an ex parte
basis, an Affidavit of Non-Conpliance regarding the failure. Upon
filing of the affidavit, the Court may authorize, w thout
addi ti onal process or demand, Wits of Possession or Sequestration
or other equitable wits requested by the Tenporary Receiver. The
writs shall authorize and direct the United States Marshal or any
sheriff or deputy sheriff of any county (pursuant to Fed. R G v.
P. 4(c)(1)) to seize the asset, docunent, or other thing and to
deliver it to the Tenporary Receiver.
XVI .
BANKRUPTCY PETI Tl ONS

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that, in light of the asset freeze and
appoi ntment of the Tenporary Receiver, each of the Individual
Def endants is hereby prohibited fromfiling, or causing to be
filed, on behalf of either him or herself or of any of the
Corporate or Receivership Defendants, a petition for relief under
the United States Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 101 et seq.,
Wi thout prior permssion fromthis Court.

XVII .
TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO THE TEMPORARY RECEI VER

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat, upon service of a copy of this
Order, all banks, broker-dealers, savings and | oans, escrow
agents, title conpanies, commodity tradi ng conpanies, or other
financial institutions shall cooperate with all reasonabl e
requests of the Tenporary Receiver relating to inplenmentation of
this Oder, including transferring funds at his direction and
produci ng records related to the assets of the Receivership

Def endant s.
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XVITIT.
STAY OF ACTI ONS

| T I S FURTHER ORDERED t hat :

A Except by leave of this Court, during pendency of the
recei vership ordered herein, Defendants and all other persons and
entities (except for Plaintiff) be and hereby are stayed from
taking any action to establish or enforce any claim right, or
interest for, against, on behalf of, in, or in the nane of, any of
t he Corporate Defendants, or any of its assets, or the Tenporary
Recei ver or the Tenporary Receiver's duly authorized agents acting
in their capacities as such, including, but not limted to, the
foll ow ng actions:

1. Commenci ng, prosecuting, continuing, entering, or
enforcing any suit or proceeding, except that such actions
may be filed to toll any applicable statute of limtations;

2. Accel erating the due date of any obligation or
clainmed obligation; filing or enforcing any lien; taking or
attenpting to take possession, custody, or control of any
asset; attenpting to foreclose, forfeit, alter, or termnate
any interest in any asset, whether such acts are part of a
judicial proceeding, are acts of self-help, or otherw se;

3. Executing, issuing, serving, or causing the
execution, issuance or service of, any |egal process,
including, but not limted to, attachnents, garnishnents,
subpoenas, wits of replevin, wits of execution, or any
ot her form of process whether specified in this Order or not;

or
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4. Doi ng any act or thing whatsoever to interfere with
the Tenporary Receiver taking custody, control, possession,
or managenent of the assets or docunents subject to this
recei vership, or to harass or interfere with the Tenporary
Receiver in any way, or to interfere in any nmanner with the
exclusive jurisdiction of this Court over the assets or
docunents of the Receivership Defendants.

B. Thi s paragraph does not stay:

1. The commencenent or continuation of a crim nal
action or proceeding;

2. The conmencenent or continuation of an action or
proceedi ng by a governnental unit to enforce such
governmental unit's police or regulatory power;

3. The enforcenent of a judgnent, other than a noney
j udgnment, obtained in an action or proceeding by a
governnmental unit to enforce such governnental unit's police
or regul atory power;

4. The comrencenent of any action by the Secretary of
the United States Departnment of Housing and Urban Devel opnent
to foreclose a nortgage or deed of trust in any case in which
the nortgage or deed of trust held by the Secretary is
insured or was fornmerly insured under the National Housing
Act and covers property, or conbinations of property,
consisting of five or nore living units; or

5. The issuance to a Receivership Defendants of a
notice of tax deficiency.

C. Except as otherwi se provided in this Order, all persons

and entities in need of docunentation fromthe Tenporary Receiver
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shall in all instances first attempt to secure such information by
submitting a formal written request to the Temporary Receiver,
and, if such reguest has not peen responded to within thirty (30)
days of receipt by the Teﬁ‘ora“y Receiver, any such person or
entity may thereafter seek an Order of this Court with regard to
the relief requested.
XIX.
COMPENSATION OF TEMPORARY RECEIVER

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Temporary Receiver and all
personnel hired by the Temporary Receiver as herein authorized,
including counsel to the Temporary Receiver and accountants, are
entitled to reasonable compensation for the performance of duties
pursuant to this Order and for the cost of actual out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by them, from the assets now held by or in the
possesslon Or control of or which may be received by the
Receivership Defendants. The Temporary Recelver shall file with
the Court and serve on the parties periodic requests for the
payment of such reasonable compensation, with the first such
request filed no more than sixcy days after rhe date of this
Order. The Temporary Receiver shall not 1lncrease the hourly rates
used as the bases for such fee applications without prior approval
of the Court.

XX.

RECEIVER'S BOND

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Temporary Receiver shall file

with the Clerk of this Court a bond in the sum of /CACK)O

with suretles to be approved by the Court, conditioned that the
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Tenporary Receiver will well and truly performthe duties of the
of fice and abide by and performall acts the Court directs.
XXI'.
DI STRI BUTI ON OF ORDER
| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat nanmed Def endants shall imredi ately
provide a copy of this Order to each of the Corporate Defendants
affiliates, franchises, subsidiaries, divisions, successors,
assigns, directors, officers, managi ng agents, enployees,
representatives, and i ndependent contractors and shall, within
three (3) business days fromthe date of service of this Order,
serve on plaintiff affidavits identifying the nanes, titles,
addresses, and tel ephone nunbers of the persons and entities whom
t hey have served pursuant to this provision. The Tenporary
Recei ver has no obligation under this provision.
XXl
CREDI T REPORTS
| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff nay obtain credit
reports concerning any of the named Defendants pursuant to Section
604(a) (1) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U S.C. 8§
1681b(a) (1), and that, upon witten request, any credit reporting
agency from which such reports are requested shall provide themto
Plaintiff.
XX
CORRESPONDENCE
| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat, for the purposes of this Oder,
all correspondence and service of pleadings on Plaintiff shall be

addr essed to:
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John D. Jacobs

Jennifer M. Brennan
Federal Trade Commission
10877 Wilshire Blvd., #700
Los Angeles, CA 90024
Fax: (310).824-4380

,e

XXIV.
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION HEARING

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants Trek Alliance, Inc.,
Trek Education Corporation, vonFlagg Corporation, Jeffrey Kale
Flagg, a/k/a Kale Flagg, Richard Von Alvensleben, a/k/a Rich Von,
Tiffani Von Alvensleben, a/k/a Tiffaqé an, and Harry M. Flagg,
shall appear before this Court at 31 }/ 510)’))/)0[ ﬁ . ,

930~ Dec®°  aad?hl 407

o tiﬁ. day of , 20, at _I9¥ © clock

a.m//p.m., to show cause, if any there be, why this Court should

not enter a preliminary injunction, pending final ruling on the
Complaint, against said Defendants enjoining them from violations
of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45 (a), imposing such
additional relief as may be appropriate, and appointing a
permanent receiver over Defendants Trek Alliance, Inc., Trek
Education Corporation, VonFlagg Corporation.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in support of 1ts application for
a preliminary injunction, plaintiff may submit supplemental
evidence discovered subsequent to the filing of 1its application
for a TRO, as well as a supplemental memorandum. Plaintciff shall
file and serve any supplemental evidence by no later than 4:30
p.m. on the sixth court day prior tO the preliminary injunction
hearing as scheduled above. Such documents may be served on each
named Defendant by faxing or delivering the document (s) to the

attorney for the Defendant, or, if the pDefendant is not
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represented by counsel, to a fax nunber previously designated by
the defendant in witing to counsel for Plaintiff; if the
def endant has not so designated a fax nunber, service may be
effected by mailing the docunents to an address designated in
witing by the Defendant to counsel for Plaintiff; if no address
has been so designated, service shall be conplete upon filing of
t he docunents with this Court.

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat naned Defendants shall file and
serve any opposition to the issuance of a prelimnary injunction
and the appoi ntnent of a pernmanent receiver over Defendants Trek
Al liance, Inc., Trek Education Corporation, VonFlagg Corporation,
i ncl udi ng any decl arations, exhibits, nmenoranda or other evidence
on which they intend to rely, and objections to any evi dence
submtted by Plaintiff, by no later than 4:30 p.m of the fourth
court day prior to the hearing on the prelimnary injunction.
Such docunents may be served by fax upon Plaintiff's counsel.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiff shall file and serve any
reply to Defendants' opposition by no |later than the second court
day prior to the prelimnary injunction hearing.

| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat there will be no direct
exam nation of witnesses at the prelimnary injunction hearing in
this matter. Direct testinony shall be presented in the form of

decl arations or affidavits.
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XXv.
EXPIRATION
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order shall expire as to each
named Defendant ten (10) ggurt days after entry unless, within
such time, for good cause shown, it 1is extended for a like period,
or unless the named Defendant consents that it may be extended for
a longer period and the reasons therefor are entered of record.
XXVI.
SERVICE OF THIS ORDER
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that copies of this Oorder may be served
by any means, including facsimile transmission, upon any financial
institution or other entity or person that may have possession,
custody, or control of any documents or assets of either

defendant, or that may be subject to any provision of this Order.

e < C Sc.
IT 15620 ORDERED, thsis ﬁ‘H{\ day of DLQ , 200, at
[

'2109 o'clock a.m.(E:EQ

J SPENCER LETTS

Judge of the District Court

pPresented Dby:

JOHN D. JACOBS

JENNIFER M. BRENNAN

Attorneys for plaintiff

Federal Trade Commission

10877 Wilshire Blvd., Ste. #700
Los Angeles, CA 90024






